
 
 

Page 1 of 3 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

1) Call to Order – Chairman, Warden Russell Boucher  

2) Approval of Agenda  

3) Approval of May 10th, 2016 Committee of the Whole Minutes 

4) Business Arising from the Minutes 

a) ASHRU  

b) 4-H Exchange 

c) Strait Area Ground Search & Rescue Association 

5) Budget Deliberations 

6) Adjournment 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE AGENDA 
Tuesday, May 17th, 2016 @ 5:30 pm  

Municipal Administration Centre 

-1-



 
 

Page 2 of 3 
 

MUNICIPALITY OF THE COUNTY OF ANTIGONISH 

 

TO: 
 
MUNICIPAL COUNCIL 

FROM: GLENN HORNE, MUNICIPAL CLERK TREASURER  

SUBJECT: COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE MEMO  

DATE: MAY 17TH, 2016 
 

 
BUSINESS ARISING FROM THE MINUTES 
 
ASHRU – Greg Smith from ASHRU responded to Council’s request for more information with the 
following: 
 

Past efforts have been made to reach out to potential funding partners for the respective "special" 
services the ASHRU wishes to offer. Although we haven't approached these folks lately (as we were 
waiting for Town & County to decide on funding the ASHRU), we have had discussions with some of 
the potential future funding partners, and if approved by the Town & County, will be following up 
with presentations and request for annual funding to these various agencies: 

 Each of the nine Volunteer Fire Departments - $500... so 9 x $500 = $4500.00 

 St.F.X.U. - $1500.00 

 St. Martha's Hospital - $1500.00 

 Antigonish Sno-Dogs - $500.00 

 Antigonish ATV Club (soon to be organized) - $500.00 

 Other agencies such as DFO, DoE, T&IR, RCMP, EHS, Etc.- Probably will be requesting 
between $250 - $500 from each annually 

 Other out-of-county agencies and commercial entities such as Martin Marietta (quarry), 
Town of Port Hawkesbury, Municipality of District of Guys 
 

So, if successful with just the first five organizations listed, we stand to receive annual revenue of 
$8500.00! We are certainly committed to follow-up with this initiative. As we build these 
partnerships, less funding would be required from each Municipality. 

As for reaching out to the VFD's... there is no room to house our inventory of vehicles, equipment 
and office at at any of these buildings. As for SAGS&R they are too far away for our preference and 
they already have plans for their building. Note: we have offered SAGS&R space on our property a 
couple years ago (ie. build addition to our building) but they respectfully declined as this was not 
where they wanted to be situated. 

-2-



 
 

Page 3 of 3 
 

We are very committed to using our own land & building located at 4373 Hwy.#4 in Heatherton. 
Where practical, we plan to do a lot of the building upgrades ourselves... hence saving valuable $$$. 
The Heatherton location is also much better situated for Town (and fringe areas) & County area 
responses... as well as to the members of the team. I hope my responses gives a better sense of 
what we plan to do with the ASHRU in terms of future funding partners and our location. Should you 
have additional questions or require further clarification, please do not hesitate to contact myself or 
any Executive member 
 
4-H EXCHANGE – Council requested a list of the participants who will be going on the 4-H Exchange 
and what Districts they are from. We received the following information: 

Participants: 
Shamus Thomson-15   Harbour Centre, Landing 4-H  District 2 
Jeremie Bellemore –14   St Andrews      District 6 
John Albert MacHattie –13 St Andrews     District 6 
Nathaniel Smith –12  St Andrews    District 6  
Melissa Delorey- 16   Heatherton     District 7 
Nella MacHattie –15  St Andrews     District 6 
Rebecca van de wiel –13 St Andrews    District 6 
Julianna Haverkort –13  St Joseph’s     District 3 
Maddy Roberts –12   St Andrews     District 6 
Brianna Stewart-12   St Andrews     District 6 

Chaperones: 
Tim Bellemore   St Andrews    District 6 
Sally vandeWiel    St Andrews     District 6 

  

STRAIT AREA GROUND SEARCH & RESCUE ASSOCIATION - Council has asked staff to check with 
other municipalities within SAGSARA’s catchment area to see if they will be funding their operations. 
Here are the findings:  

Town – No 
St. Mary’s – No 
Guysborough - $10,500 only payable with all the other units are on board 
Port Hawkesbury – Still deliberating 
Richmond – Still deliberating 
Inverness – Still deliberating 

 
BUDGET DELIBERATIONS 

The Fiscal 2016/17 Operating Budget will be presented. Materials will follow. 

-3-



Committee of the Whole Meeting, May 10th/16 Page 1 

COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE MEETING 

A Committee of the Whole Meeting was held Tuesday, May 10th, 2016 at 5:00pm in the Council 
Chambers of the Municipal Administrative Centre, 285 Beech Hill Road, Antigonish NS. 

Present were:  Warden Russell Boucher, Chair 
Deputy Warden Owen McCarron 
Councillor Mary MacLellan 

   Councillor Angus Bowie 
Councillor Vaughan Chisholm  
Councillor Rémi Deveau 
Councillor Pierre Boucher 
Councillor Bill MacFarlane 
Councillor Donnie MacDonald 

   Glenn Horne, Municipal Clerk/Treasurer 
   Shirlyn Donovan, Interim Deputy Clerk  
   Allison Duggan, Director of Finance 
 
Regrets:  Councillor Hughie Stewart 
    
The meeting of the Committee of the Whole was called to order by the Chair, Warden Boucher, at 
5:00pm. 

APPROVAL OF AGENDA  

The following item was added to the agenda: 

 Pomquet School Letter of Support 
 Street Light Request 
 Minimum Standards By-law 
 Grant Approval 
 Senior Safety Funding Request 

 

Moved by Councillor MacDonald and seconded by Deputy Warden McCarron that the agenda be 
approved as amended.  Motion carried. 

APPROVAL OF MINUTES 

Moved by Councillor MacDonald and seconded by Councillor MacLellan that the Committee of the 
Whole minutes May 3rd, 2016 be approved as presented.  Motion carried. 

 
BUSINESS ARISING FROM THE MINUTES 

There was no business arising from the minutes. 
 
PERSONNEL MATTERS (IN-CAMERA) 

This subject matter falls within Section 22(2) of the Municipal Government Act as a matter that 
a committee may discuss in a closed session.  It is recommended a motion be made to initiate 
an in-camera session.  

-4-



Committee of the Whole Meeting, May 10th/16 Page 2 

 
PERSONNEL MATTERS (IN-CAMERA)  

This subject matter falls within Section 22(2) of the Municipal Government Act as a matter that 
a committee may discuss in a closed session.  It is recommended a motion be made to initiate 
an in-camera session.  

 

Moved by Councillor MacLellan and seconded by Councillor MacDonald that the Committee of 
the Whole Meeting be adjourned to an In-Camera Session to discuss personnel matters. Motion 
carried. 
 
Moved by Councillor MacFarlane and seconded by Councillor MacDonald that Municipal Council 
adopt the report from SPL Consulting. Motion carried.  
 
Moved by Councillor MacLellan and seconded by Councillor MacDonald that the Committee 
recommends to Municipal Council that the position description for Strategic Initiatives 
Coordinator be approved as presented. Motion carried.  
 
Moved by Councillor MacFarlane and seconded by Councillor Deveau that the Committee 
recommends to Municipal Council that the following staff appointments be approved: 

 Andrew Jessens be appointed to the position of Public Works Supervisor. 
 Tony Giesbrecht be appointed to the position of Mechanic. 
 Shirlyn Donovan be appointed to the position of Strategic Initiatives Coordinator. 

Motion carried.  
 
Moved by Councillor MacDonald and seconded by Councillor Chisholm that the Committee 
recommends to Municipal Council that a public competition be initiated for the position of 
Collection Vehicle Operator. Motion carried.  
 
Moved by Deputy Warden McCarron and seconded by Councillor MacFarlane that the In-
Camera session be adjourned at 6:35pm.  Motion carried.  
 
CAPITAL BUDGET DISCUSSIONS 

The Committee was provided with a preliminary list capital projects for Fiscal 2016/17.  Ms. 
Duggan went through the list line by line for the committee’s approval. The capital budget will 
be approved with the overall budget on May 24th. 
 

COMMUNITY PARTNERSHIP GRANT RECOMMENDATIONS   

The Committee was provided with recommendations for the Community Partnership Grants. 
The floor was opened up for questions from Councillors. 

Deputy Warden McCarron asked about the Care Van funding. Ms. Duggan said that the County 
committed to 5 years of funding at $1000 per year and that term is up. She also highlighted that 
there are other financial asks that come throughout the year and that we have a miscellaneous 
budget that the funding can come out of. 

-5-



Committee of the Whole Meeting, May 10th/16 Page 3 

Councillor MacLellan asked about Our Food Store, who this organization is. Councillor 
MacLellan would like more information on this group. 

 

Moved by Councillor MacFarlane and seconded by Councillor MacLellan that the Community 
Partnership Recommendations be approved as presented. Motion carried. 
 
There are 3 applications which staff would like to Council to consider as they do not fit under 
the current policy (attached) and make recommendations. 

4H Exchange – Council would like to obtain a list of all the participants and what district they 
are from. 

Strait Antigonish Immigrant Support – Council has decided not to fund this project. 

Challenger Baseball – Each Councillor would like to give $50 out of their district grants towards 
their trip to Toronto. 
 
REQUEST FOR FUNDING: STRAIT AREA GROUND SEARCH AND RESCUE ASSOCIATION  

The committee was provided with the funding request from Strait Area Ground Search and 
Rescue Association. They presented to Municipal Council in June 2015 requesting $10,500 for 
the initial purchase of the building and $3,000 per year tax levy for maintenance and operation 
of the building to be disbursed monthly or in biannual payment. They are requesting funds from 
the Municipalities of Antigonish, Guysborough, Inverness and Richmond, The Towns of 
Antigonish, Mulgrave and Port Hawkesbury and the District of St. Mary’s.  

The Committee would like to find out if the other municipal units will be contributing to the 
funding. Mr. Horne said he would look into this. 
 
FUNDING REQUEST FROM VETERANS MEMORIAL PARK  

We have received a funding request from the Veterans Memorial Park. There was damage done 
by weather to the front of the Cenotaph and they have to buy 2 panels (one large and one 
small) to replace the damaged ones. The cost of the panels is $3600 and they are requesting to 
funding to help cover this cost from the seven municipalities within the quad counties.  

 
Moved by Councillor MacFarlane and seconded by Councillor MacDonald that the Municipality 
contribute $514.29 to the Veterans Memorial Park contingent on all other municipal units 
contributing equally.  Motion carried. 
 

REQUEST FOR PROPERTY TAX REDUCTION  

A request was received from a resident for a property tax reduction due to income and 
disability for property tax account number 09707956. For the past number of years this 
resident has received a 30% reduction in their taxes which translated last year into $179.53. 

Moved by Councillor Deveau and seconded by Deputy Warden McCarron that the Committee 
recommends that Municipal Council grant a reduction of 30% to the 2016 amount owing for tax 
account #09707956. Motion carried. 

-6-



Committee of the Whole Meeting, May 10th/16 Page 4 

POMQUET SCHOOL LETTER OF SUPPORT 

Councillor Deveau is requesting a letter of support from Municipal Council stating that 
Municipal Council is willing to lease the land of the old Pomquet School to the Pomquet 
Community Centre for $1. 

 
Moved by Councillor Deveau and seconded by Councillor MacFarlane that Municipal Council send a 
letter of support to the province stating that if the Pomquet Community Centre project moves 
forward, they will lease the land to the group for $1. 
 
STREET LIGHT REQUEST 

Councillor Chisholm is requesting a street light at the end of Trotters Lane. There was 
previously one there but the light was removed and residents would like it replaced. 

 
Moved by Councillor Chisholm and seconded by Councillor MacLellan that Municipal Council 
approve the request for a street light in the cul-de-sac of Trotters Lane.  Motion carried. 

 
MINIMUM STANDARDS BY-LAW 

Councillor MacFarlane asked that the Committee take another look at the minimum standards 
by-law. Mr. Horne provided the committee with a Minimum Standards By-law from Wolfville 
which they felt was a little bit too broad. Councillor MacFarlane is suggesting something similar 
but focusing mainly on abandoned buildings in residential areas.  
 
GRANT APPROVAL 

Councillor MacLellan has received a grant request from the Holy Rosary Church in Ballentynes 
Cove to celebrate community heritage for $1000. Because this is a religious organization the 
funding request must be approved by Council. Council agreed to approve this request. 
 
SENIOR SAFETY FUNDING REQUEST 

Senior Safety is looking for funding to purchase a mascot and is requesting funding from the 
Town and the County. Councillor Deveau will get more information and bring it back to the 
Committee. 
 
ADJOURNMENT 

Moved by Councillor Deveau and seconded by Councillor Bowie that the Committee of the 
Whole meeting be adjourned at 7:58pm. Motion carried. 

 

 
 
Warden Russell Boucher    Glenn Horne, Municipal Clerk/Treasurer 

-7-


	Agenda
	Memo
	May 10th COW Minutes for Approval

